
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
September 5, 2013, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 1, 2013 Board Meeting and the August 14, 


2013 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A.   Discussion/Action re Proposed water service at the Monte Rio Triangle (Est. time 


20 min)  
 
B. Discussion/Action re Introduction for first reading, by title only, waiving reading of 


text of Ordinance 48 Revising Policy 3700, Bidding and Purchasing and Policy 
1020, Conflict of Interest (Est. time 15 min) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re Potential cell tower locations on District property (Est. time 


15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 20 min.) 


 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 
 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


• Guerneville 
• Rio Nido 
• Guernewood Park 
• Villa Grande 
• Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
August 1, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Nicky Tallman 
      Dave Hardy 
      Chuck Ramsey 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer requested that Item V-B (Presentation by Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce to 
waive capacity charge for water service to “The Triangle” property) be heard before Item V-A (Res. 
13-18 re Authorizing Bond Refunding).  There were no objections. 
 
Director Robb-Wilder requested that Item V-D (Ord. 48 re Revising Policy 3700, Bidding and 
Purchasing, and Policy 1020, Conflict of Interest) be continued to the September meeting.  There 
were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  The GM announced a minor change 
to the Minutes.  Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted with the 
change to the Minutes.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Robb-
Wilder abstained as the Minutes because she was not present at the July meeting.  The following 
items were approved: 


 1







 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 10, 2013 Regular Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) 
 
B. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Presentation by Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce 


to waive capacity charge for water service to “The Triangle” property in Monte Rio.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Chuck Ramsey, Vice President of the Monte 
Rio Chamber of Commerce (MRCC), provided further information.  Board questions and 
discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel David Warner.  Further 
Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by David Hardy.  Further 
comments were made by David Warner.  Direction was given to staff to continue 
discussion with the MRCC and Monte Rio Parks and Recreation Department.  


 
A. (7:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-18, Authorizing the Issuance of a 


Refunding Bond in an Amount Not to Exceed $9,000,000 and the Execution and 
Delivery of a Bond Issuance Agreement and Placement Agent Agreement and 
Authorizing Certain Related Matters.  The GM provided an overview of this item 
accompanied by a PowerPoint presentation.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  
Director Wikle moved to approve Resolution 13-18, Authorizing the Issuance of a 
Refunding Bond in an Amount Not to Exceed $9,000,000 and the Execution and Delivery 
of a Bond Issuance Agreement and Placement Agent Agreement and Authorizing Certain 
Related Matters.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
C. (8 p.m.) Discussion/Action re FY 2012-13 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  There was no action on 
this item.   


 
 


*** At 8:09 p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8:17 p.m. 
 
 
D. (This item was postponed to the September meeting.) 
 
E. (8:17 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Establishing an Agenda E-mail List.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
establish an e-mail list for the Agenda that included a link to the Board packet.  Director 
Schaap seconded.  Brief discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel 
David Warner.  Further discussion ensued.  Motion carried 5-0.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 


 2







4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge 
5. 2014 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
9. Vacations 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:39 p.m.) 


 
Director Holmer noted that he approved of the Missions and Goals attached to the Agenda. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:39 p.m.) 
 
At 8:39 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:40 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 9 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 


A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 
54956.7 


 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District  


  This item was dropped from the Agenda. 
 
 B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
  Title: General Manager 
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:04 p.m.) 
 
1. Status of Refinancing 
2. Cell tower siting possibilities 
3. Water service to Monte Rio Triangle 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


 3







 4


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:26 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:39 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:39 p.m.)

		A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.7

		 Property: 17448 River Lane, Guerneville

		 Agency negotiator: Steve Mack

		 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Park and Recreation District 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:04 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
August 14, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     (None) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Holmer at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
(None.)  
 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:33 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 13-19, 
Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District.  Board Secretary Julie Kenny provided an overview of this item.  
Discussion ensued.  At 6:34 p.m. Director Holmer opened the public hearing.  There were no 
comments.  At 6:34 p.m. he closed the public hearing.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt 
Resolution 13-19, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 1







 2


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  September 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROPOSED SOLUTION RE 
CAPACITY CHARGE FOR WATER SERVICE TO “THE TRIANGLE” 
PROPERTY IN MONTE RIO  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation from the General 
Manager re providing water service to the Monte Rio Triangle parcel. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Capacity Charge will be paid over time, annual 
assessment will be paid starting the 2014 tax bill, water charges will be 
paid when water service starts.      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This past winter the Board of Directors was approached with a proposal to 
provide water service without payment of the Capacity Charge to the 'Monte 
Rio Triangle' parcel which is a parcel in downtown Monte Rio at the junction of 
the Bohemian Highway with Highway 116.  The parcel is privately owned and 
District Policy 3020.142 is that all persons and entities requesting water 
service shall pay the District’s capacity charge prior to initiation of water 
service, unless the District waives this requirement by written agreement 
approved by the Board.  Public agencies do not pay the capacity charge.     
 
At the July meeting a petition was presented by Chuck Ramsey asking that 
the Board cooperate with the Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce to provide 
water service to the Triangle.  The Board asked Mr. Ramsey to talk with the 
General Manager regarding another agenda item on this topic.  At the August 
meeting the Chamber of Commerce presented their request for waiving the 
capacity charge again.  The Board expressed concerns about nonpayment of 
the capacity charge and involvement of the Monte Rio Park and Recreation 
District, and requested that the Chamber meet with District staff for further 
discussions.  One possibility that was offered at the meeting was paying the 
capacity charge over time.   
 
On August 7 I met with David Hardy, Chuck Ramsey and Mary Baker of the 
Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce.    Following up on the suggestion of paying 
the capacity charge over time, we started our discussions on how that could 
work.  The proposed solution is that the Chamber will pay off the 
capacity charge with a 20-year payment schedule – 1/20 of $4960 per 







Monte Rio Triangle Water Service 2  
September 5, 2013 
 


 


year or $248 per year.  In addition to the capacity charge payment the 
annual assessment ($198 per year) will be added to the parcel’s 
property tax statement and will be paid through the property tax 
payment – that will be added to the 2014-2015 tax bill; it will not be on 
this year’s tax bill.   
 
Also, the connection fee – the time and materials needed to make the 
physical connection (above noted to be minimal) and we estimate at 
$125.77 - will need to paid up front along with the first installment of 
the capacity charge.   
 
Once the capacity charge is fully paid, the parcel will have established a 
right to water service with the District.  If the capacity charge 
payments are dropped prior to completion of the 20-year payment 
schedule, the annual assessment will be discontinued with no refund of 
or credit for any prior payments; re-establishment of service to that 
parcel will start from the beginning – full payment of whatever the 
capacity charge is at that time and restarting the annual assessment.  
We will need an agreement with the Chamber that states these terms.   
 
It is our understanding that the Chamber will take responsibility for the 
water account, which will be classified as a commercial account.  
District account holders may have the water turned on (active) or off 
(inactive) at will (for a $20 fee).  However, whether the water service is 
active or inactive, the capacity charge payment schedule and the 
annual assessment will continue to be due and payable.  Prior to 
turning on water service, we will need to see the tenancy agreement 
showing that the Chamber has permission from the property owner to 
be there.   
 
This proposed solution does not involve the Monte Rio Park and 
Recreation District. 
 
The District has had similar capacity charge pay off arrangements in the 
past (one is ongoing now) without Board approval.  As such, I am 
proposing to go forward with this solution providing the appropriate 
agreement is signed by the Chamber.  If the Board directs me to not 
implement this proposed solution, of course I will follow that direction.   





		MEETING DATE:  September 5, 2013 






 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE INTRODUCTION FOR FIRST READING, BY 
TITLE ONLY, WAIVING READING OF TEXT OF ORDINANCE 48 REVISING POLICY 
3700, BIDDING AND PURCHASING AND POLICY 1020, CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Introduction for first reading, by title only, 
waiving reading of text of Ordinance 48 Revising Policy 3700, Bidding and 
Purchasing and Policy 1020, Conflict of Interest. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The annual audits of the past few years have pointed out that the District does not 
follow its purchasing policy as stated in Policy Number 3700.  Review of the policy has 
shown that it has inconsistent direction as well as practices that are no longer followed.  
In the process of trying to fix the existing policy, District Legal Counsel, David Warner, 
suggested modeling a revised purchasing policy on that of the City of Healdsburg and 
that is what we have done.  We believe this revised policy incorporates the important 
elements of the existing policy – it changes no purchasing limits – and is much more 
straightforward and easy to follow.   
 
The changes to Policy Number 1020, Conflict of Interest are necessary because the 
County of Sonoma has changed its procedures which allows it to delegate some 
responsibility for filing statements of economic interests to municipalities and special 
districts.  These changes are small and should have little impact on District operations.   
These changes are shown in “Track Changes” format in Exhibit A. 
 
Staff recommends introduction of Ordinance 48 which is attached as Exhibit A.  If introduced 
at this meeting and adopted at the October 3, 2013, meeting, Ordinance 48 will become 
effective 30 days after the October 3 meeting.   







ORDINANCE NO. 48 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT REPLACING 
SECTION 3700 AND SECTION 1020 OF THE DISTRICT’S POLICIES AND 


PROCEDURES 
 
  


WHEREAS, Section 3700 of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s Policies and 
Procedures contains important policies regarding District purchasing, bidding and sales 
practices, and;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 1020 of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s Policies and 
Procedures contains important policies regarding District conflict of interest policies, and; 
 
WHEREAS, District staff, legal counsel and the Board of Directors have reviewed and 
discussed revisions to Section 3700 and Section 1020; and  
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of reviewing Section 3700 was to update the Policies to reflect 
current practices, improve wording and consistency, and make it easier to follow; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of reviewing Section 1020 was to update the Policies to reflect 
current County of Sonoma requirements which have been recently changed; and 
 
WHEREAS, Exhibit A attached is a clean, final version of Section 3700 and Section 1020. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Section 3700 and Section 1020 of the District’s Policies and Procedures are 
hereby replaced with a new Section 3700 and Section 1020, a copy of which is attached as 
Exhibit A. 


Section 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for 
any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the Ordinance.  The Board 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
Section 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  







Ordinance No. 48. Replacing Sections 3700 and 1020 of the District’s Policies and Procedures 
September 5, 2013  2 
 
 
This Ordinance was introduced on September 5, 2013, on roll call by the following vote: 
  
 Tim Lipinski    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:    
 Richard Holmer:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 







Exhibit A.  Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 
and 1020 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
Policy Title: Bidding, Purchasing, Sales, and Transfers 
Policy Number: 3700 
Date Approved: February 9, 1993____ 
Date Revised: September 5, 2002 
Date Revised: September 5, 2013 


Subsections: 


3700.10    Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


3700.20    Definitions. 


3700.30    Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


3700.40    Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


3700.50    Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


3700.60    Purchasing award. 


3700.70    Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


3700.80    Exceptions to this section. 


3700.90    Splitting orders prohibited. 


3700.100    Prevailing wages. 


3700.110    Inspection and testing of purchases. 


3700.120    Surplus supplies and equipment. 


3700.130    Surplus real property. 


3700.140    Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain. 


3700. 10  Purpose of purchasing policies and procedures. 


The purpose of this section is to (A) establish efficient and effective processes for the 
purchase or lease of services, supplies, materials and equipment at the lowest feasible 
cost commensurate with the level of quality required; (B) exercise financial control and 
accountability over purchases; and (C) clearly define authority for the purchasing 
function. In adopting the ordinance codified in this section, it is the intent of the District to 



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.010�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.020�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.030�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.040�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.050�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.060�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.070�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.080�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.100�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.110�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.130�

http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24.140�





Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 2 
September 5, 2013 


responsibly manage public funds and provide responsibility for, and consistency in, 
implementing purchasing policies and procedures.  


3700.20  Definitions. 


As used in this section, the following terms shall have the meanings described below: 


A.    “District” means the Sweetwater Springs Water District, including the political entity 
and its geographical boundaries. 


B.    “Excluded goods or services” means goods or services (as described below) in 
which any District official or District employee has a financial interest. 


C.    “Goods or services” means services, supplies, materials and equipment that are the 
subject of this section. 


D.    “Purchasing officer” means the District General Manager or designee of the District 
General Manager. 


E.    “This section” means Section 3700  


3700.30 Purchasing officer designated and duties established. 


A.    Purchase agreements up to an amount of $25,000 may be authorized and executed 
by the purchasing officer. Purchase agreements of $25,000 or more shall be authorized 
by the District Board.  


B.    The District General Manager is designated as purchasing officer for the District.  


C.    The District General Manager may delegate all or a portion of the duties of 
purchasing officer to any District staff member. The purchasing officer shall have the 
authority to: 


3700.30.01.    Purchase, or contract for the sale or lease of, goods or services required 
by the District in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section and 
other applicable law; 


3700.30.02.    Negotiate and recommend execution of contracts for purchase or lease of 
goods or services in accordance with purchasing procedures established in this section 
and other applicable law; 


3700.30.03.    Act to procure for the District the necessary quality in goods or services in 
accordance with the provisions of this section and other applicable law; 


3700.30.04.    Prepare and recommend to the District Board amendments to the 
purchasing rules; 



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/healdsburg/html/Healdsburg03/Healdsburg0324.html#3.24�





Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 3 
September 5, 2013 


3700.30.05.    Establish and maintain such forms as reasonably necessary to the 
purchasing function and maintain other records necessary for the efficient acquisition of 
goods or services; 


3700.30.06.    Supervise the inspection of all goods or services purchased or leased by 
the District to ensure conformance with specifications; 


3700.30.07.    Recommend and oversee the sale or disposal of all goods or services 
which cannot be used by the District, or which have become unsuitable for District use; 


 


3700.40 Procedures for purchases of less than $25,000. 


For purchases of goods or services of less than $25,000, or that are not subject to other 
laws and/or procedures, the purchasing officer shall use the following procedures: 


3700.40.01.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of $1,000 
or less, informal quotes may be obtained from vendors but are not required.  


3700.40.02.    For purchases of goods or services having an estimated value of more 
than $1,000, but less than $25,000, firm quotes either received in writing or taken 
verbally but confirmed in writing shall be obtained. At the discretion of the purchasing 
officer, the competitive bid process described in 3700.50 may be used for the acquisition 
of goods or services having an estimated value of more than $1,000, but less than 
$25,000. 


3700.50 Procedures for purchases of more than $25,000 – Formal sealed bids. 


When the estimated amount of value involved in a purchase transaction exceeds 
$25,000, the authorization to award a purchase contract shall be made by District Board 
resolution following a sealed competitive bid process as outlined below: 


3700.50.01.    A notice inviting bids shall be prepared and shall include a general 
description of the goods or services to be purchased or sold, where bid instructions and 
specifications may be obtained, the time and place for bid openings, and whether a bid 
deposit or bond, or other security, such as performance, payment or maintenance 
bonds, will be required.  


3700.50.02.    A notice inviting bids shall be advertised at least twice in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the District with the first publication being at least 10 days prior to 
the opening of bids. 


3700.50.03.    When required by law or deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, 
and if included in bid instructions, bidders may be required to submit a bid deposit or 
bond in an amount determined by the purchasing officer. Bidders shall be entitled to 
return of bid security, except that a successful bidder (and a successful bidder’s surety, if 
a bid bond is required) shall be liable for any damages suffered or incurred by the 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 4 
September 5, 2013 


District upon refusal or failure to execute a contract within 10 days after the notice of 
award of contract has been mailed, unless the District is responsible for the delay.  


3700.50.04.    The District Board may, on refusal or failure of the successful bidder to 
execute the contract, award it to the next lowest responsible bidder. If the District Board 
awards the contract to the next lowest bidder following a forfeit of the bid security by the 
lowest bidder, the amount of the lowest bidder’s bid security shall be applied by the 
District to the difference between the low bid and the second lowest bid; the surplus, if 
any, shall then be returned to the lowest bidder. 


3700.50.05.    When deemed appropriate by the purchasing officer, and if included in bid 
instructions, any person or entity entering into a contract with the District may be 
required to furnish a faithful performance deposit or bond in an amount determined by 
the purchasing officer.  


3700.50.06.    Sealed bids shall be submitted to the purchasing officer and shall be 
identified as bids on the envelope. Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place 
stated in the public notices. A tabulation of all bids received shall be open for public 
inspection during regular business hours for a period of not less than 30 calendar days 
after the bid opening. 


3700.50.07.    In its sole discretion, the District Board may reject all bids presented and 
readvertise for bids. 


3700.60 Purchasing award. 


In awarding a contract for goods or services that is subject to this section, the following 
procedures and policies shall be applied:  


A.     Except as may otherwise be provided in this section, contracts that are subject to 
this section shall be awarded to a responsible bidder who submits the lowest responsive 
bid. 


B.    If two or more bids received from responsible bidders are for the same total amount 
or unit price, quality and service being equal the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) may accept the lowest bid made by negotiation 
with the tie bidders. 


3700.70 Purchasing award – Factors to be considered. 


A.    In determining bid responsiveness, the purchasing officer or District Board 
(depending on who will make the award) shall consider whether the bid documents are 
completed as required and the bid generally conforms to the bidding requirements. The 
purchasing officer or District Board may waive any bid nonconformities in accordance 
with applicable law. Any conditions or qualifications included by a bidder in a bid will be 
considered when determining whether a bid is responsive. 


B.    In its discretion, the purchasing officer or District Board (depending on who will 
make the award) may use any of the following criteria in evaluating the responsibility of 
bidders: 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 5 
September 5, 2013 


3700.70.01.    The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract or 
provide the service required. 


3700.70.02.    The ability of the bidder to perform the contract or provide the service 
promptly, or within the time specified, without delay or interference. 


3700.70.03.    The reputation and experience of the bidder, including the District’s 
previous experience with the bidder. 


3700.70.04.    Prior and current compliance by the bidder with applicable law, including, 
without limitation, compliance with any applicable licensing requirements. 


3700.70.05.    The sufficiency of the bidder’s financial and staffing resources for 
performing the contract or providing the goods or services. 


3700.70.06.    The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual 
services to the particular use required. 


3700.70.07.    The ability and availability of the bidder to provide future 
maintenance/service. 


3700.70.08.    Any conditions or exceptions attached to the bid by the bidder.  


3700.80 Exceptions to this section. 


A.    This section is expressly made inapplicable to bids for public projects as defined by 
the state of California in the Public Contracts Code, Section 20160, et seq. 


B.    The following conditions constitute sufficient cause to dispense with the bidding 
requirements of this section and such requirements shall not apply to: 


3700.80.01.    Contracts for professional or expert services, such as, but not limited to, 
services rendered by architects, attorneys, engineers, and other specialized consultants. 


3700.80.02.    Goods or services which can be provided by only one supplier or only 
from one source due to a patent or copyright. 


3700.80.03.    Contracts for advertising, ordinary travel expense items, and subscriptions 
to trade publications or other publications used by the District for a public purpose. 


3700.80.04.    Situations where no bids have been received following bid 
announcements or all bids received exceed budget appropriations or costs estimates. 


3700.80.05.    Emergency conditions which involve a sudden, unexpected occurrence or 
discovery of a condition or circumstance that poses a clear and imminent danger 
requiring immediate action and that compels placing an order with the most expedient 
source of supply. 


3700.80.06.    Contracts for janitorial services for District buildings and facilities. 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 6 
September 5, 2013 


3700.80.07.    Products or services for which other public agencies have gone through a 
competitive bidding process and are able to have the bid prices they received extended 
to the District. These “cooperative purchasing” or “piggyback purchasing” agreements 
(including, but not limited to, CCOP State Department of General Services, U.S. General 
Services Administration, any county, and state cooperative purchasing pools) in which 
the District is eligible to participate may be used in lieu of any bidding requirements 
under this section. 


3700.80.08.    When the estimated value of the goods or services is less than $1,000. 


3700.80.09.    When the District Board specifically waives the competitive bid process 
and authorizes staff to negotiate the purchase.  


3700.90 Splitting orders prohibited. 


It is unlawful to split or separate into smaller orders the purchase of goods or services for 
the purpose of evading the competitive bidding provisions of this section. For goods or 
services which are purchased repeatedly throughout a year, the bidding procedures 
used shall be consistent with the estimated cumulative expenditures during a 12-month 
period.  


3700.100 Prevailing wages. 


Potential bidders for goods and services that are subject to the requirements of the 
California Prevailing Wage Law (California Labor Code Section 1720, et seq.) shall be 
notified of the applicability of prevailing wage requirements in the bid documents and 
shall comply therewith.  


3700.110 Inspection and testing of purchases. 


The purchasing officer is authorized to order the inspection of supplies and equipment 
delivered and services performed to determine their conformance with the specifications 
set forth in the order or contract. The purchasing officer shall have authority to require 
chemical and physical tests of samples submitted with bids and samples of deliveries 
which are necessary to determine their quality and conformance with specifications. 


3700.120 Surplus supplies and equipment. 


At such times as determined by the purchasing officer, reports shall be prepared 
showing all supplies and equipment which are no longer used or which have become 
obsolete or worn out. The purchasing officer shall have the authority to sell, trade or 
exchange all supplies and equipment. All surplus property valued at more than 
$10,000.00 requires a District Board resolution declaring it surplus. Upon declaration of 
an asset as surplus, the District General Manager shall have the authority to dispose of 
supplies and equipment in whatever manner shall best serve the interests of the District.  







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 7 
September 5, 2013 


3700.130  Surplus Real Property Belonging to District.   
 
Surplus real property belonging to the District shall be disposed of, sold or transferred 
only as the Board of Directors may prescribe, but unless otherwise prescribed in any 
case, the following procedures therefore shall be followed: 
 
3700.130.01. A notice shall be given by the Clerk of the Board stating that the District 
proposes to sell certain described property and stating the time and place when sealed 
bids will be received thereon. 
 
3700.130.02. The Board of Directors shall fix the time and place for the receipt of such 
bids and shall instruct the Clerk of the Board  with respect thereto. 
 
3700.130.03. Such notice calling for sealed bids shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation printed, published and circulate within the District or 
County of Sonoma, State of California, at least ten days prior to the date fixed for the 
receipt and opening of such bids. 
 
3700.130.04. Upon the receipt of such bids and at the time and place fixed therefore, 
the same shall be publicly opened and declared by the Board of Directors and the 
property sold to the highest bidder therefore, provided, however, that the Board may 
reject all bids and retain the property or determine that bids shall again be called for. 
 
3700.130.05. Nothing herein set forth shall apply to any easement, license or lease of 
land for a term of fifty (50) years of less; provided that such easement, license or lease 
and all use thereunder shall be subordinate to use of such land by the District for the 
major purposes of the District. 


3700.140  Purchase of Real Property - Eminent Domain.   


If and whenever the Board of Directors shall determine that the District requires and 
should purchase real property, or any interest therein, it shall do so without any call for 
bids and in such manner as may be specified in each instance.  In the event the Board 
shall so determine, it may in any instance proceed with eminent domain proceedings. 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 8 
September 5, 2013 


1020  Conflict of Interest 
Date Approved:    _______________ 
Date Revised:      October 7, 2004 
Date Revised: September 5, 2013 
 
 
 1020.10 The Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000 et 
seq., requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of 
interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices Commission (http://www.fppc.ca.gov/) has 
adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a 
standard conflict of interest code.  It can be incorporated by reference and may be 
amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission after public notice and hearings to 
conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code 
of Regs. Section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political 
Practices commission are hereby incorporated by reference and, along with the attached 
Appendix "A" in which members of the Board of Directors and employees are 
designated, and in which disclosure categories are set forth, constitute the conflict of 
interest code of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT. 
 
 1020.20 Board Members and the General Manager shall file statements of 
economic interests with the clerk of the County of Sonoma.  All other dDesignated 
employees shall file statements of economic interests with the clerk of the County of 
SonomaClerk of the Board for the Sweetwater Springs Water District. 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 9 
September 5, 2013 


 
APPENDIX "A" 
 
General Provisions: 
 
 An investment, interest in real property, income, or position of management is 
reportable if the business entity is in which the investment is held, the interest in real 
property, the income or source of income, or position of management may foreseeably 
be affected materially by any decision made or participated in by the designated 
employee by virtue of the employee's position. 
 
 Each designated employee shall disclose his or her financial interests pursuant 
to the appropriate disclosure category as indicated in Appendix "B". 
 
 "Financial Interests" are reportable only if located within or subject to the 
jurisdiction of the District, or if the business entity is doing business or planning to do 
business in the District, or has done business within the District at any time during the 
two (2) years prior to the filing of the statement.  In addition to other activities, a business 
entity is doing business within the District if it owns real property within the District.  
Reportable real property interests include those located within two (2) miles of the 
District or within two (2) miles of any land owned or used by the District. 
 
Disclosure Categories: 
 
 Category 1: 
 
 Designated officers and employees in this category must report 
Investments, interests in real property, income, and any business entity in which the 
person is a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or holds any position in 
management. 
  
 Category 2: 
 
 Designated officers and employees in this category must report all income from 
and investments in businesses that provide or sell services or supplies of the type 
associated with job assignment and utilized by the District. 







Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020 10 
September 5, 2013 


APPENDIX "B" 
 
 
 Designated Positions                Disclosure Category 
 
Members of the Board of 
Directors       1  
 
General Counsel      1 
 
District Engineer      1 
 
Consultants*       1 
 
General Manager      1 
 
Field Manager       2 
 
Office Manager      2 
 
 
 
*Consultants are those persons or firms who provide under contract information, advice, 
recommendation or counsel to the District except as provided in 2 Cal Code of Regs 
Section 18706 a2(A) and (B).      
.   
 





		Item V-B - Revision of P&P Section 3700 and 1020

		Meeting Date: September 5, 2013 



		Item V-B.1 - Ordinance 48 - Section 3700 and 1020

		Item V-B.2 - Exhibit A - Ordinance 48

		Exhibit A.  Ordinance 48, Policies and Procedures Sections 3700 and 1020

		1020  Conflict of Interest








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


MEETING DATE:  September 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE USING DISTRICT PROPERTY 
FOR CELL TOWER SITES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation from the General 
Manager re use of District property for cell tower sites. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.      
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Recently the District considered leasing a portion of the parcel that 
contains the Highland Treatment Facility to AT&T for use as a cell tower 
site.   Many nearby residents protested this use of the parcel and the 
Board directed that the negotiations with AT&T for use of that location as a 
cell tower site be dropped.  During the discussion, Board members 
suggested that other District parcels may be good cell tower locations and 
be better located with respect to nearby residential land uses.   
 
In the past, the cell tower site possibilities have come from the cell phone 
companies or from consultants working with cell phone companies.  These 
requests have apparently come out of some kind of investigation by the 
cell phone companies that led them to certain parcels.  In the five years I 
have been here, we have received inquiries about the Highland Treatment 
Plant site and the Mount Jackson site where we already have two cell or 
radio tower sites leased.   
 
Some issues related to cell tower sites: 
 
Location, location, location – of course, the first thing the cell phone 
companies are looking for is a site that adds to their coverage network.  
We have a number of parcels throughout our service area that may fit 
that.   
 
Elevation – The Highland parcel is at 250 feet, the Mount Jackson top is 
approximately 1650 feet.  I am assuming that an elevation similar to the 
Highland parcel, or higher, is what cell phone companies are looking for.  







Cell Tower Sites on District Property 2  
September 5, 2013 
 


 


Our tanks sites fit the elevation requirement and we have some 
unoccupied parcels with higher elevations, but perhaps not adequate 
access.   
 
Access – I believe cell phone companies want good access to these sites.  
We have many sites with good access and a few that may have other 
good attributes of a site but poor access. 
 
Nearby residences – the Highland site is in the middle of a residential 
area.  Most of our other tank sites are at the edge of residential areas – 
not in the middle of many homes but still within some reasonable distance 
to someone’s home.  We have very few parcels that are not near anyone 
and those parcels mostly have poor access or are already in use (Mount 
Jackson).  They also may not be in a location that has any benefit to an 
existing cell phone network.   
 
There may be other issues related to the potential for cell tower sites on 
District property.  Staff would appreciate direction on how to respond to 
requests for use of District property for cell tower sites.       





		MEETING DATE:  September 5, 2013 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July was 29,163 units (66.9 AF, 


Guerneville cycle) and production was 92.0 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were lower (76.2 AF and 98.1 AF, respectively).  The annual average difference 
between sales and production increased a bit compared to the prior month to 25.7%.           


 
3. Leaks:  In July we had 12 total leaks and spent 113 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and more man-hours compared to the prior month and than July one year ago 
(20 leaks, 81.5 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a 
total breaks line as well, and is showing a continual decline in both.            


 
4. Flow at Hacienda Bridge: Figure 3 shows flow at the Hacienda Bridge which since the 


June rain event has tracked very similarly to last year’s flow.  Before that it was well below 
historical averages and the flow during the 2009 dry year – that was done on purpose to 
maintain water in Lake Mendocino.    


 
5. 2014 CIP:   The contractor, Piazza Construction started construction on the Hidden Valley 


element on August 5 and is making good progress there.   As part of the construction 
effort, the contractor proposed boring the mainline instead of trenching and offered a cost 
savings of $87,000.  We agreed with the approach and, so far, it is working well – there is 
much less disruption to the neighborhood.               


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   One toilet rebate was approved in August.  The 


Direct Install Program numbers remain the same: the most current accounting is 17 
customers have had 27 direct install toilet installations completed, 13 customers with 17 
toilets have been approved for installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait 
list.                     







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
September 5, 2013 
 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were five in-house projects reported for August.  
Staff replaced 190 feet of water line with 2 inch HDPE with 2 new valves and 3 new 
services on Canyon 6 in Rio Nido (309 hours over 2 months), replaced 40 feet of PVC 
conduit under creek crossing (18 hours), replaced one service on Orchard Ave. (32.5 
hours) replaced one service line on Cherry St. (58 hours) and supervised a construction 
new service, the work was done by Von Renner Construction (0.5 hours).     


 
8. Emergency Repair to Monte Rio Filter:  One cell in one of two green sand filters at the 


Monte Rio Treatment Facility failed during the week of August 19.  This filter treats high 
iron and manganese in produced groundwater.  Staff contacted the company that has done 
maintenance on this filter and received an estimate of $17,000 to rehabilitate the cell, 
fixing whatever has caused the failure, plus refreshing the filter media inside the entire 
filter.  The work in fixing this filter should be completed by August 31 and the filter should 
be back in service by September 4 (after testing).  Until the failed filter is back in service, 
the Monte Rio system will still have filtration from the remaining working element.   


 
9. Power Outage on August 25-26:  The power outage that hit the Guernewood Park area 


affected the District Office and the booster pumping stations at Park Avenue Tank and the 
Lower Summit Tank.  At the Office the office emergency generator failed and a portable 
generator was brought in to supply power for necessary functions – one phone line, 2 
computers, and one printer.  Generators also supplied power to the Park Avenue and Lower 
Summit booster pumps so that no customers were out of water (with one exception for a 
customer who had additional pumping that did not operate during the outage).  More could 
have been made operable at the Office if needed.  This was a good test for the Office in 
that most of the distribution system (other than that described above) was not affected.  
Staff has contacted Ferrellgas, the owners of the office generator, for necessary 
maintenance and repairs for the generator.   


 
10. Refinancing Closing: The refinancing of 20 years of USDA bonds closed on August 21.  


Everything went smoothly during the month of August – a big difference from the attempt 
to do the public refinancing in June.  The District will save an average of approximately 
$45,000 per year in reduced debt payments for the next 20 years.   


   
11. Gantt Chart:   September in the Gantt Chart shows that 2014 CIP construction is 


continuing and is expected to last into November.  The Gantt Chart also notes that 
something should be happening with the SCWA water rights protest in September – the 
draft EIR for the change in flows for Decision 1610 was scheduled for release this month.  I 
have learned that the draft EIR is now expected in early 2014; I have marked January in 
red as a reminder, but it may be later than that.   


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
September 5, 2013 


.          


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 4 
September 5, 2013 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Jan-09 May-09 Sep-09 Jan-10 May-10 Sep-10 Jan-11 May-11 Sep-11 Jan-12 May-12 Sep-12 Jan-13 May-13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2013 Compared to Earlier Years 
and the 2000-2008 Average, Updated August 27, 2013


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


1-
M


ay


8-
M


ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay


5-
Ju


n


12
-J


un


19
-J


un


26
-J


un


3-
Ju


l


10
-J


ul


17
-J


ul


24
-J


ul


31
-J


ul


7-
Au


g


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug


4-
Se


p


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


2000-08 Avg


2009


2012


2013


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


 







 
Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 FY 15+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2013-14 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2014-15 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


•        2015 CIP Design


•        2015 CIP Award of Contract


•        2015 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest x
Building Lease


•        Lease Ends July-16
Policies and Procedures


•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Table 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2013 



